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X-FAin _UN£XPOSED

DESCRIBETHE present and original (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

■The qraunds of the estate contain the main house, an assortment of depe^enci^,
and sev^al significant landscape features, A long avenu^ lin^ mth tall locust,
itBple, and oak trees, leads from the main entrance westwa^ until it sweeps ^
a sard-circle to the entrance of the main house. Situated on the brow of a hill
ovprlookina the Hudson Kiver, the main house of MDntganery Place is a rectangular,building constricted of nbble-filled stone walls covered with^two pairs of iiiterior erd chdimeys, tte structure is
bv a hio roof sheathed with painted sheet metal. The house as it was origimlly
constructed in 1803-1804 is believed to have had a plain, unadorned stone exterior.

The floor plan and tlie interior of the structure viiich Janet Livingston
Ibntgaiery built in 1803-1805 is essentially unaltered,in Se ceiitral bay of the east elevation, oper^ into a
entry can be nade into the toio major parlors vAich o^W the
firqt storv as well as into the spaces which flank the hall. On ^ is tne
library vhile on the south the rectangular space is occupied by ^ stair ^^ fl^a^TrLSn^ar room. Nearly all interior wxpdwork dates from to original
mnqt-ruction Particularly noteworthy is the panelling of the

supplanent to flat vertical members of to door frame.
in 1842-^843 and again in 1863 iiexa^er

the house, to north pavillion,
Davis-s earlier work for Icuise ^wtagstorw tole house today

north. Both are of frame construction, altough so as to look

except to south end of to tripartite composition.

^ s: ots.
trZls of to main structure, its by an

^ taSVletS^n o? to main stricture.

" Wtract between Mr. Steinberg and Mrs. Uvingston, 1844. livingston Family Papers
ta to possession of Major John White Delafield, 17 East 84ta Street, NS. York,
New York.



FoM" No 10

^H pV 10 74)

UNI 11 DSl All S DM'AK I Ml M "H IMIKiOK IfOR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK Sr HVICE

RECEIVED

^ '\TIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET Description item number #7 page

Swags, guilloche, and an ornate oornice adorn this central feature, viiile the flanking
panelled piers of the balustrade are decorated with wreaths. ']^iglyphs and rretopes
omanBnted by small floral medallions mark the frieze. Ihe window enframanent of
the second story is corrparatively sinrple, vdiile that of the first story is
highlighted by an antefix in the Greek style, elaborated consoles, and low reUef
in a floral pattern applied to the frieze. Flanked by pilasters, the main
entrance consists of a double door vhich is itself flanked by sidelights and
sunrounted by a semi-elliptical fanlight crowned with an ornate keystone. The
entrance, like the frieze of the wLndcw enframement, is highly decorated with
^lied ornament in low relief. Sheltering the entrance is the semi-circular
portico rimiTEd by a balustrade, ornamented with a frieze of swags, and supported
by fluted Corinthian columns. .

The wall surface of the semi-octagonal, one-story south wing is divided by flat
pilasters which support a frieze decorated in applied floral ornament in low
relief, and a balustrade above. The ornamentation vhich surrounds the fenestration
is like that of the main structure and the walls of the ̂ lygon vhich are not
occupied by windows are treated as blind arcades. Identical in proportion, ̂
north pavillion repeats the classical design and the applied ornamentation of the
south wing. In the case of the south pavillion the walls act as an arcade defined
by piers with engaged fluted columns, implied floral ornam^t adorns both i^er
and outer frieze, the arches, and the enframement of the main stmcture s full
height windows vdiich afford circulation between the pavillion and the interior
of the residence.

The design of the west elevation echoes that of the east elevation except for
variations in the crowning feature of the balustrade, the portico, the cor^ce,
and the veranda. SuniDunted by an antefix in a shell mo^f, the shaped centoi
feature of the balustrade is penetrated by three small windows and decorated
applied ornament in low relief. The mutules of the ma:m cornice inters^ed
with floral rredallions. The portico of the west side is rectangular, support^
by fluted columns with stylized Corinthian columns 'similar to those of both wings,
aM adorned by a curvilinear motif in the frieze. 1^11 urns to
portico's balustrade, while wider nore shallow urns rest upon to piers of the
^Jiranda balustrade.2 On to west side, because of the downw^d slope ̂  the land,
the first floor and veranda are elevated permitting circulation from to cellar
in a passageway below the veranda floor.

^These my be similar to the vases mentioned in Davis's diary. Alexander Jackson
Davis, Papers, tfetropolitan Museum, New York, New York.
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The only significant alterations to the building occurred during the 1920's
and 1930's \^en Brigadier-General Delafield installed electricity and plurrbing;
erected the screened sleeping porch on top of the north pavillion; raised the
roof on the west side in order to convert attic space into additional servants
quarters; and built at least one tier of balustrades on the grounds just west of
the house in the style of the balustrades designed for the house and terrace hy
Davis.

Clustered south/southwestward from the main house are several gable-roofed
dependencies: the shingled vrood frame lodge and its board and batten shed; the
clapboarded wood frame Court; a garden conplex consisting of a small stone
structure, the iron frame of a green house, and the remains of a formal garden;
and the coachhouse. Designed by Alexander Jackson Davis in 1859, the coachhouse
or stable barn is a one-and-a-half story, wood frame, cross gabled structure
(6Q' by 36'), sheathed with flush siding and surmounted by a polygonal ci^la.
Pilasters occur at the comers of the structure and flanking the large arcl^
entrance in the central bay of the structure's north elevation. The interior
still contains much original woodwork including chamfer^ posts, wainscoting,
and heavy, half-round moldings forming arches over the interior doors.

East of the main house there are tro clusters of structures: the bam corrplex,
and a group of dwellings near River Road. The former contains numemus clapboarded,
wood-frame structures including storage sheds, a shop, the farm office, an
octagonal stone water reservoir building, and the main bam. The main bam and
two sheds date from 1861, erected by Peter Harris, a local builder, at a oost
of $1,561- As part of the sait^ contract Harris also built a com house which may
be one of the structures standing today as part of the barn conplex. On a hill
close to the bam.coirplex stands the farmhouse, designed by Davis in 1861. Con
structed of wood frame, sheathed with boards and battens, the farmhouse measures
three bays by one bay and is covered by a low-pitched, cross-gable roof. The
east end features a tripartite window suggestive of a Palladian format.

/

The second cluster of structures in this area of the estate is situated just
downhill frcm the farmhouse. This group of residences consists of the very
snail, gable-roofed, clapboarded wood-frame Spurr Cottage with its exposed stone
fireplace-back; the srtall, simple, late 19th century, clapboa^ed wood fr^
Bathrick House; the clapbcarded wood frame Thonpson House enlivened by a dentill^
and bracketed cornice; the clapboarded, wood frame North Cottage with its se\^al
board-and-batten outbuildings; and the board-and-batten Swiss Cottage designed
by Davis. Standing two-and-a-half stories in height, the cottage is a large,
nearly square dwelling distinguished by its low-sloping truncated gable roof,
its delicately carved bargeboard, anl its grouping of small balconies car the
east end.
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The rerraining structures on the property are the wood frame Kelley house and
garage, a small prefabricated ranch house erected three years ago near the-Coach
House; a coitplex of small, wood frarre 20th century cottages located within the
orchards in the east portion of the estate; a modern shed opposite Spi^r ODttage;
the cement powerplant erected near the mouth of the Sawkill Creek during the 1920 Sr
the dams rebuilt during the same decade; and tie stone staircase, rebuilt during
the 1920*s, vhich constitutes the dock in the cove west of the main house.

■  In 1847 Andrew Jackson Downing observed that a large part of the grounds^at
ftontgcamery Place were "devoted to pleasure-grounds and ornamental purpos^.' ̂
Although to sore extent overgrown, much of the landscape admired by Downing is
still observable, and many of the drives and walks are still open. The sou^^
reaches of the estate contained vhat Downing described as "an oak wood of about
fifty acres."4 fhrou^ this natural wood extended a drive> "a sylvan route...
agreeable for exercise in the carriage, or on horseback.. ."5 some of this route
is still open.

Among the natural features described by Downing was the "Wilderness", ' a ridily
wooded and highly picturesque valley, filled with the richest growth of trees, and
threaded with dark, intricate, and mazy walks, along vhich are placed a variety ot
rustic seats. "6 The valley of the Sawkill Creek is unchanged although the rustic
seats described and pictured in Downing's publications are not long^ extent. Two
small board-and-batten bath houses rorain near one of the dams in the stream.
"A fine ej^ansion of the same stream," the "Lake" and the cataracts observed by
Downing are still discemable, although the octagonal "rustic terrple is gone.'

In "the open pleasure grounds near the house" is the site of the Conservatory,
"a large, isolated, glazed structure, designed by Mr. Catherwood...." "more
delicate green-house plants" were arranged during the summer on the north side or
this large structure. 9 "Passing under neat and tasteful archways of wirework one

^Andrew Jackson Downing, "A Visit to Montgomery Place," ̂  Horbi^turist
Joum^'l of Rural Art and Rural Taste, II, No. 4, (Octob^, 1847) , p. 154.

'^Ibid., p. 160.

^Ibid., p. 160.

6Andrew Jackson Downing, A Treatise on ̂  Theory aid ITactice of La^cape Gardening.
(New York: Funk & Wagnalls, 1967; facsimile of sixth edition, 1859), p. 32.

"^Downing, "A Visit to Montgomery Place," pp. 157-158.

^Ibid., p. 159.

^Ibid.
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gained access to the flower garden at either end of viiich there was a fanciful
light summer-house, or pavillion, of Moresque character. "10 These may have been
cunong the "various garden buildings," arbors, and garden arches designed for the
estate by Davis in the period 1899-1851.11 Neither the conservatory nor ̂
pavillions remain. The arboretum, began ca. 1847 by Thorras Barton at a site
adjacent to the conservatory is today largely overgrown and Davis *s "Arboretum
Teirple" is no longer extant.

Nurterous structures mentioned in Davis *s accounts for various areas of the
estate, if built, have apparently not survived. These structures include a
"Gate Lodge" or "(fete House," a "terminus for interior wall of drive," a
"rustic bridge," anl a "Chinese seat bridge."12 The "carriage entrance 9ate
mentioned as designed in 1847 for Cera L. Barton may correspond in part to the
existing entrance feature. 13

^^Alexander Jackson Davis, Papers, Metropolitan Mnseum of Art (New York, New York).
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Situated overlooking the Hudson River, Montgoneary Place is an excellent
onbodment of the 19th century life style of the Livingston family, prcsT±nent in the
history of New York State from the 17th century through the 19th c^entury. Built in
1803-1805, the main house contains a fine interior of the federal style. The
exterior of the house was remodelled in 1844 and 1863 by Alexander Jackson Davis
vjho also designed several dependencies for the estate. The oorrplex of structures,
aixi the landscaped "pleasure grounds" of the estate elicited from Andrew Jackson
Downing recognition as "second...to no seat in America."^ Although each element^
of the property is individually significant, the survival of the corrplex within its
inid-19th century setting renlers MDntgcsnery Place an architectural and social
landriBrk of considerable distinction.

Prior to 1688, Col. Peter Schuylea: of Albany purchased from the Indians a parcel
of land on the east bank of the Hudson River which today constitutes most of the
Tom of Red Hook. During the first half of the 18th century "S<^uyler's Patent"
passed altiDst intact into the hands of Ci>l. Henry Beekman who in 1776 bequeathed his
extensive holdings to his only child Margaret. Merged with the extensive Livingston
family lands by mrgaret's marriage to Judge Robert Livingston, of Clermont_ (a
National Historic Landmark), the Schuyler/Beekman land was subsequently divided
among Margaret Beekman Livingston's ten heirs including Chancellor Robert R.
Livingston (1746-1813) , of Arryl and Clermont; Alida Livingston (1761-1822) , of
La Bergerie or Itokeky; and Janet Livingston ( -1828).

ly^rried in 1773 to General Richard MontgoirBry (1738-1775) , Janet Livingston and
her husband began oonstruction of a house known as Grasmere upon her parcel of the
family's riverfront property. Bom in Ireland, Montgomery had served in the French
and Indian War with British regular forces but had sold his comnission in 1772 and
settled in New York. Elected a mstiber of the New York Provincial Congress in 1775,
Montgomery was soon appointed a Continental brigadier-general and second in cortmand to
General Philip Schuyler in the expedition to Canada, Inking full comiand Lpon
Schuyler's illness, he captured Montreal and subsequently joined (General Benedict
Arnold's force to lay seige to Quebec. During the American assault upon that city
Montgcmery was fatally wounded.

^Andrew Jackson Downing,"A Visit to Montgcmery Place," The Horticulturist and
Journal of Rural Art and Rural Taste, II, No. 4 (October, 1847), p. 153.
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After Montgomery's death, Janet Livingston Montgoitiery conpleted Grasmere but
soon thereafter purchased a large tract, originally part of the Schuyler Patent,
frcm a fanner by the name of Van Benthuysen. In 1803-1804 on a hill overlooking
the Hudson River she erected a dwelling \^ich she called Chateau de Montgomery.
At her death in 1828, she left the property to her brother, lawyer/statesman
Edward Livingston (1764-1836).

Serving simultaneously (1800-1803) as U.Si Attorney for New York and as mayor
for New York City, Edward Livingston had been "held responsible for the defalcation
of an agent and gave up all his own property to be sold in order to make restitution
of the loss to the Treasury."^ in 1804 Livingston moved to New Orleans and opened
a law practice. Successfully clearing himself of false accusaticns of abetting
Aaron Burr in his 1806 activities, Livingston was subsequently involved in a
controversy with President Jefferson over title to certain alluvial lands at New
Orleans.

As chairman of the New Orleans corrtnittee of public defense,
Livingston [had] organized the people of Louisiana in
their resistance to British invasion, 1814. At the
battle of New Orleans he [had] served Andrew Jackson as
aide-de-cairp, interpreter and adviser. Ooitmissioned,
1821, to revise the Louisiana panel law, he [had]
oonpleted a code in 1825 which aimed at the prevention rather
than the punishment of crime. Althou^ it was not
adopted, the publication of the code brou^t him wide fame. ̂  ^

Serving as a Congressional Representative (1823-1829) at the time of his sister's
death, Livingston was subsequently chosen a Senator (1829-1831). As U.S.
Secretary of State (1831-1833) he "drafted the celebrated 1832 proclamation
to the South Carolina nullifiers," and "secured an admission by the French
Government in 1831 of the justice of Anerican claims for spoliaticn under the
Berlin and Milan decrees."^ Livingston closed his public career with two years
service as U.S. Minister to France (1833-1835).

Edward Livingston and his family had suimiered at Chateau de Montgomery during
Janet Livingston Montgomery's residence there. With Livingston's death only one

'Concise Dictionary of American Biogr^hy (New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1964),
p. 575.

'ibid.

'ibid.
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year following his retirerrent, the property on the Hudson became the residence
of his wife, the former Louise Davezac (1781-1860) of New Orleans. It w^
under her aegis that the estate was altered according to designs by architect
Alexander Jackson Davis (1803-1892).

Upon the- death of Mrs. Edward Livingston in 1860 the property then _
M3ntqcsiery Place passed to her dau^ter Goralie Livingston Barton (1806-1873) , wife
of bibliophile/botanist Ihoras Pennant Barton (1803-1869). Mrs. Barton continued
the alteraticns initiated during her mother's residence there, securing the ser^ces
of Alexander Jackson Davis for the design of a variety of structures includ^g the
coach house, the Swiss Cottage, the east portico for the main hou^, and garto
pavillions. Mrs. Barton subsequently willed the estate to New Orle^ rel^^
for life, and ultimately to Livingston descendant, Brigadier-General Jdm Itoss
Delafield (1874-1964). Brigadier-General Delafield was a Notf York lawyer vho
served with the military during World War I and lat^ as chairman of the Board o
Contract Adjustment. Owned since 1964 by the Delafield Mansion Corporation mMontgoirery Place Orchards, Inc., Montgarery Place is now the residence of Major and
Mrs. Jchn White Delafield.

Ebllowing a visit to MontgoHery Place in 1847 Andrew Dc^ng
"though MontgoEBry Place itself is old, yet a spirit ever new directs the u^rovotents
carried on within it. Althou)^ the interior of the main house is a very fine -
illustration of the federal style, the exterior of the resid^^, the
dependencies, and the grounds vividly represent toe tastes ^qJi^rations of the Livingston family vho lived there. Alex^der Jack^ tevis s
additions to the main house, executed by a local build tog, ^. Steinberg , ^
resulted in a syimietrical, tripartite conposition of distimct elegance ™ ^dignity. Executed to a neo-classical style, the s exte^or is ei^ch
by an abundance-.of finely detailed ornamentation. Very little altered sa^ce n
middle of the 19th century, the mansion is still the structure ^ch A. J.
Downing called "one of the best specimens of our manor houses,

%

5Downing, "A Visit to Montgcsnery Place,: p. 160. y

6ibid., p. 155.
w.
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Downing's admiration of the residence was further inspired by the estate as a
wiiole viiich he observed was "nowlTere surpassed in America, in point of location,-
natural beauty, or the landscape gardening charms vihich it ejdirbits."7 some of the
originally five miles of drives and paths are still open through the "Wilderness,"
the "South Wood," and around the "pleasure grounds" in the vicinity of the main
house. In addition to designing the alterations to the nain house, Alexander_
Jackson Davis was respcnsible for the design of a wide variety of elements vdiich
together took anple advantage of the property's natural attractions. These features
included rustic seats, pavillions, garden arches, rustic bridges, terraces, vases
and pedestals, a Chinese seat and gate, an aiboretum teirple, and an entrance gate,
Davis also designed the architecturally distinguished Coach House, .Swiss Cottage
and farmhouse \diich still stand on the property. Construction of Davis's
Coach House and farmhouse was executed by local builder Peter Harris. Downing
attributed the design of the ittposing Conservatory, new collapsed, to a Mr.
Catherwood, but the adjacent ai±)oretum is believed to have been the work of
Thomas Pennant Barton.

Still part of the approximately twenty miles of estate property vhich Downing
(Observed along the eastern bank of the Hudson River, Montgcmery Place has remaned
to a great degree unaltered. The approximately four hundred acres which ooi^tituted
the estate at the time of Downing's visit has been very little reduc^ in size,
and both the design of the remaining structures and their interrelationshipwith the
landscape have been preserved to a very great degree.

"^Andrew Jackson Downing, A Treatise to Theory and Practice of Landscape
Gardening (New York: Funk & Wagnalls, 1967; facsimile of sixth edition, 1859),
p. 31.
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The boundaries of the site correspond to the property lines of Delafifild
Mansion Corporation and Mantgoiiery Place Orchards, Inc. Beginning at ^
the intersection of State Route 199 and State Route 9G, the property 1^
extends west about 1,000 feet, east about 500 feet to River Road, north
along River Road about 1,000 feet, and then east to South Bay (Hudson
River). The east bouidary line runs north along the shore of South Bay
except for an extension out to the Hudson River. From the gunction of
South Bay and the Sawkill Creek the north boundary line follows^ ̂
Sawkill Creek west to a point west of River Road vhere a stoight line
extends westward about 800 feet to State Route 9G. From tl^s point the
west boundary line extends south about 600 feet, angles briefly westoard
and then extends west about 1,000 feet. Fromjhis point the Ime r^
south/southwest to State Route 199, then extends west along State Route
199 to the juix:ticn vdth State Itoute 9G>
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HISTORIC

Montgomery Place, Chateau de Montgomery
AND OR COMMON

Montgomery Place

^ LOCATION
CITY. TOWN .VICINITY OF

Annandale

COUNTY

Dutchess

STATE

New York

^ MAP REFERENCE
SOURCE U.S. Department of the Interior, Geological Survey, 7.5 Minute Series

SCALE 1:24,000 DATE 1963

REQUIREMENTS
TO BE INCLUDED ON ALL MAPS

1. PROPERTY BOUNDARIES

2 NORTH ARROW
3 UTM REFERENCES

Kingston East Quadrangle



rrr No 10*30T ''

»v 10-74)

UNITU.D STATF.S DhPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTY MAP FORM

FOR NFS USE ONLY

RECEIVED

DATE ENTERED

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- ENCLOSE WITH MAP

NAME

HISTORIC

I^ntgonery Place, Chateau de Montgonery
AND.OR COMMON

>t)ntgDmery Place

LOCATION

CITY. TOWN .VICtNITYOF

Annandale

COUNTY

Dutchess

STATE

New York
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SCALE 1:24,000 1963

^ REQUIREMENTS
TO BE INCLUDED ON ALL MAPS

1 PROPERTY BOUNDARIES

2. NORTH ARROW
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Saugerties Quadrangle
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